## **Guernsey Bar Billiards Association Rules – 2021/2022**

- 1. The association shall be administered by a committee consisting of a President, Vice President, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, 2 General Members.
- 2. An Annual General Meeting shall be held not later than twenty eight days after the league finals night.
- 3. The following shall be included in the business of the Annual General Meeting:
  - i. Minutes of the previous Annual General Meeting.
  - ii. Secretary's report.
  - iii. Treasurer's report.
  - iv. Proposed new rules or changes to rules.
  - v. Election of committee members.
  - vi. Level of individual registration fees
  - vii. Any other Business
- 4. Any proposed new rules or changes to rules must be received by the secretary not less than fourteen days before the date of the Annual General Meeting.
- 5. Nominations for Committee members must be proposed, seconded and must not be made without the consent of the nominee.
- 6. Only players from the previous season will be entitled to vote at the Annual General Meeting.
- 7. An Extraordinary General Meeting shall be held if considered appropriate by the Committee or if the Secretary receives a request, in writing, stating the business to be discussed and signed by at least seven registered players.
- 8. All meetings shall be chaired by the President or, in his absence, the Vice-President. In the absence of both the President and the Vice-President, a chairman shall be elected by those present.
- 9. At any Annual General Meeting, Extraordinary General Meeting or Committee meeting, any item shall be decided by a simple majority of those present and voting. In the event of an equality of votes the chairman shall have a casting vote.
- 10. The quorum for a Committee meeting shall be four members.
- 11. The Treasurer shall keep an account of all the income and expenditure and shall submit annual accounts at the Annual General Meeting.
- 12. The Association shall operate such bank accounts as may be agreed by the Committee. Withdrawals shall only be made on the signatures of any two of the President, Secretary and Treasurer

- 13. Individual registrations shall be paid to the Secretary or Treasurer at or before the individual's first league match. Failure to do so will result in the individual being disqualified from all competitions for the season.
- 14. The selection of the individuals to represent Guernsey in the annual match against Jersey shall be based upon their league position with the top 5 players plus the Island Knockout champion. With the 6<sup>th</sup> Player as the reserve. If the Island Champion forms part of the top 6 players the places will go to the top 7 players, with the 7<sup>th</sup> player being the reserve. If any player is unable to take their place in the team, players will next be selected as per their ranking position.
- 15. Selection of players for the International v England will also be selected based on their ranking position. Team size will be set and agreed with the AEBBA committee.
- 16. When the inter-insular match is held in Jersey, the travel costs of the President, Secretary and Individual members (including a reserve) shall be met by the Association.
- 17. Any matter not governed by the Rules of the Association shall be determined by the Committee which shall, if necessary, ensure that an appropriate new rule or change of rule is submitted for consideration at the following Annual General Meeting in accordance with rule 4 (above).
- 18. The number of league divisions and the number of individuals in each division shall be decided by the Committee.
- 19. Each individual shall be responsible for sending to the Secretary their result of each match, completed electronically i.e. email or WhatsApp. Individuals failing to forward score/ scorecards to the Secretary within forty-eight hours will have one point deducted from their league total, subject to the discretion of the Committee.
- 20. In league matches, individuals will receive one point for each game won. In the event of a drawn game, each individual will receive half a point. 2 games will form a match and the individual with the highest combined score over the 2 games will also receive an extra point.
- 21. Should any individual resign from the league during the season, all points scored against that individual shall be cancelled and no points shall be awarded for any outstanding, unplayed matches.
- 22. In the event of individuals finishing level on points where a championship, promotion or relegation is at stake, the individuals concerned shall play off at a neutral venue to be decided by the Committee.
  - The breaks will be decided by the toss of a coin, the winner having the choice of first or second break.
- 23. Marker who will also act as referee and whose decision shall be final will be done on a volunteer basis. if no referee is found those playing will need to arrange this themselves
- 24. All scoring shall be audible to both players.
- 25. Matches will start from 7.30pm with a 40 minute gap before the next game, these will be published by the committee prior to the beginning of each season. These times can be changed only if agreed with the agreement of all players affected.
  - a) All re arranged games must be played before any final's night or within 14 days of the original date. Except for exceptional circumstances by which the committee will make a separate ruling.
  - b) In the event of any disagreement regarding the postponement or re-arrangement of a match, the matter shall be referred to the Committee, the decision of which will be final.
    - ii. All league and knockout matches are to be played at the designated venues.

- 26. Practice will be limited to before 7.25pm on the night or for after all games are completed for that week.
- 27. All tables shall run not less than fifteen and not more than seventeen minutes.
- 28. No playing instructions shall be given to a player while a game is in progress.
- 29. All individual knockout competition shall be done through a draw, and all matches shall be played at neutral venues determined at the time of the draw, unless all the players concerned agree to an alternative venue.
  - i. No entries for individual or pairs knockout competitions may be made by any player who is aware that he will not be available to player on the relevant final's night. In the event of a breach of this rule, the Committee shall decide on the action to be taken.
- 33. For individual and pairs knockout matches dates and times will be set for all knockout matches by the committee, all games not played by this date will mean that both players will be removed from the draw, unless one player turns up at the specific date and time set by the committee or the said player receives a bye from his opponent.
- 34. Individual knockout matches will be decided on the aggregate score of two games, with one opening break to each player. In the event of a player knocking over the black skittle in the second game, he shall lose all his score, including that scored in the first game. Players will toss a coin for choice of break. In the event of a draw, the match shall be replayed.
- 35. Pairs knockout matches will be played over the best of four games with one opening break to each player. In the event of a draw the total aggregate scores will decide the match. If the aggregate scores are also tied, the match shall be replayed. Pairs will be either pairing 1 "A & B" or pairing 2 "C & D", the allocation of being pairing 1 or 2 will be decided by a coin toss, with the winner having the option of being pairing 1 or 2. Pairing 1 will have the opening breaks in games 1 and 3, with pairing 2 having the breaks in games 2 and 4. The playing order for the pairs knockout will be:

Game 1 A B C D Game 2 D C B A Game 3 C D A B Game 4 B A D C

- 37. Any individual who wishes to postpone or rearrange a league or knockout match may do so provided:
  - a) All re arranged games must be played before any finals night or within 14 days of the original date. Except for exceptional circumstances by which the committee will make a separate ruling.
  - b) In the event of any disagreement regarding the postponement or re-arrangement of a match, the matter shall be referred to the Committee, the decision of which will be final.
  - ii. All league and knockout matches are to be played at the designated venues.
- 39. Any individual lodging a protest, must lodge the protest at the time the result is sent in. The protest must be sent to the secretary explaining the protest and a fee of £1. The fee will be refunded if the protest is upheld, otherwise it will go to the Association funds.

- 40. All disputes or failures to adhere to the Rules of the Association shall be brought to the notice of the Secretary who will report to the Committee. The Committee shall have the power to provide for any contingency that may arise and shall have the power to impose any penalty it may deem necessary. Its decision will be final on all matters brought to its notice or otherwise.
- 41. The red ball will score double throughout the game, and when available may be used as the cue ball, except at the break position when the red ball must be placed on the spot nearest the 'D' spot. The cue ball will, at all times, be placed on the 'D' spot.
- 42. A ball will be deemed to be in play once it has totally crossed the 'D' line.
- 43. Players committing any of the following fouls will lose any unregistered scores:
  - i. Knocking over a white skittle.
  - ii. Failing to strike a ball in play with the cue ball.
  - iii. A ball mounting the cushion or falling off the table.
  - iv. Any part of a ball returning over the baulk line or 'D' line.
  - v. If, from the break position, the balls are potted more than three times consecutively.
  - vi. All balls which remain on the table must be at rest and balls pocketed must be clear of the hole before a break is resumed or one started. Non-compliance constitutes a foul.
- 44. Players committing the following fouls will lose both registered and unregistered scores:
  - i. Knocking over the black skittle.
  - ii. Deliberately missing the object ball.
- 45. There is no penalty should a player knock over any skittle with his cue, unless, in the opinion of the marker, he did so deliberately, in which case the penalty will be that which would have applied had he knocked the skittle over with a ball.
- 46. Should more than one of the fouls described in rules 43, 44 and 45 occur in the same shot, the first foul to occur will count for the purpose of the penalty.
- 47. When all the balls are in play, the nearest ball to the 'D' spot must be returned for use as the next cue ball. This also applies once the bar has dropped. In the event of two balls being balanced over a hole when one of them has to be returned for use as the cue ball, the other must be held whilst it is removed, and then placed on the edge of the hole nearest to the point where it was balanced.

- 48. At no time must a ball be returned to a player via the holes.
- 49. If a skittle is knocked off its spot without falling, it will remain in that position until knocked over or the end of the break is reached, then be re-spotted before the next shot is made. In the event of a ball 'propping' a skittle, the ball can only be removed by being played.
- 50. Should a ball on the lip of a pocket fall in whilst a player is in play, or once a player has completed his break (except when the bar is down), that ball will be replaced as near as possible to its original position before the next shot is taken. For this purpose a player will be deemed to have completed his break once he has left the table. When the bar is down, no score is given for the ball and the next shot is taken in the normal way.
- 51. If, at the end of a game, only one ball remains, any unregistered score will be registered and the final ball played from the 'D' spot off one side cushion into either the 100 or 200 hole. The top holes will be covered and the white skittles placed in the 50 holes. Should the black skittle be knocked over, rule 44 will apply. Each player will be permitted a maximum of five attempts to pot the final ball.

52.

- i. If the Committee receives a written complaint regarding the conduct of any local player during a scheduled competitive match in Guernsey or Jersey the matter should be discussed at a meeting within four weeks of any such complaint. The secretary should advise the player verbally of any such complaint.
- ii. Once the complaint has been discussed, the player concerned should be advised of the findings within seven days, including given the details of any warning or punishment to be imposed.
- iii. The player shall have the right of appeal against any findings, censure or suspension from future games.
- iv. Any appeal against a committee decision regarding conduct should be discussed by an appeals committee, consisting of the Committee plus individual captains. Only one vote per registered individual should be counted, with the president having the casting vote in the event of a tie.
- 53. Individual handicap. Players will need to register their desire to play to the committee by the set date.

Players will receive their handicap based on their latest 1 season stats. (going back as far as 5 years a maximum for those who have not played in recent times).

For those without any playing history in those preceding 5 years will receive a handicap of zero.

i.e. player 1 has a average score and handicap of 1000 v player 2 who has an average score or handicap of zero. Player 2 will receive a 1000 point head start. Choice of breaks will be decided by the toss of a coin.